
 
 

Dated: 23rd October, 2021 
To, 
Listing Department  
National Stock Exchange of India 
Exchange Plaza, Bandra-Kurla Complex, 
Bandra (E), Mumbai -400051 
 

Symbol- TOUCHWOOD ISIN- INE486Y01013 Series- EQ 
 
Sub: Notice of 24th Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year 2020-21 
 
Dear Sir/Ma’am, 

With reference to the captioned subject, we are submitting herewith the Annual Report of the Company 
along with Notice of Annual General Meeting (AGM) for the Financial Year 2020-21, which is being sent 
to the shareholders by Electronic Mode. 
 
The 24th Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on Wednesday, 17th November, 2021 at 3 
P.M. (IST) through Video Conferencing/ Other Audio Visual means (VC/OA VM). 
 
A schedule of events relating the AGM is set out below: 

Event Day and Date Time 
Relevant Date/Cut-off date to 
vote on AGM Resolution 

Wednesday, 10th November, 2021 N.A. 

Book Closure Date for AGM & 
Final Dividend 

Thursday, 11th November, 2021 to Wednesday, 17th 
November, 2021 (both days inclusive) 

N.A. 

Commencing of e-voting Sunday, 14th November, 2021 09:00A.M. 
End of e-voting Tuesday, 16th November, 2021 05:00 P.M. 
AGM Wednesday, 17th November, 2021 3 P.M. 

 
The Annual Report and AGM Notice is also uploaded on the Company's website viz. 
http://www.touchwood.in/investor.php. 
 
Kindly take the same on your record. 
 
Thanking You, 
 
Yours Faithfully, 
 
For Touchwood Entertainment Limited 
 
 
 
 
Ashima Arora 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
 
Encl: As above 
 

 
 



 
 

NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 

Notice is hereby given that the 24th Annual General Meeting (the ‘AGM’) of the Members of 
Touchwood Entertainment Limited (‘the Company’) will be held on Wednesday, 17th November, 2021 
at 3 PM through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), to transact the 
following business: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 
31st March, 2021 including audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021, Statement of Profit and 
Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date and the Reports of the Board of 
Directors and Auditors thereon. 
 

2. To declare a final dividend of Rs. 0.12/- per equity share for the financial year ended the 31st March, 
2021. 

 
3. To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Priyanka Arora (DIN: 07931265), who retires by rotation, and 

being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.  
 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

4. Alteration of the Object Clause in the Memorandum of Association of the Company 
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as Special Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 13 and other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant rules framed there under (including any statutory 
modifications or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), and subject to the approval of the 
Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi and Haryana and/or of any other statutory or regulatory 
authority, as may be necessary, consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded 
to amend the Part-A of Clause III (The Main Objects to be pursued by the Company on its 
incorporation are) of the Memorandum of Association of the Company, by replacing and 
substituting the following sub-clauses no. 4, 5 & 6 thereof: 
 

4. To carry on the business, either on its own or through franchisee agreements, licensees, agents, 
stockists, resellers, distributors, contractors or otherwise of purchasing, selling, distributing, 
trading, acting as an agent, franchising, collaborating exporting, warehousing, importing, 
merchandising, manufacturing, designing, packaging, marketing and dealing and providing a 
platform, technology and/or other mechanism/ services including through any future and known 
technology to facilitate transactions, commerce, electronic commerce and any other types of 
commerce by and between businesses with all kinds of products, goods, commodities, 
merchandise, home appliances, electronics, accessories and equipment’s relating to, which 
includes but is not limited to, beauty, fitness, personal health care, skin care, hair care, diet 



related, home remedies, homeopathy, ayurvedic, herbal and other alternative medical or 
therapeutic treatments, wellness products and equipment’s and any other women centric products 
and home centric products on the Company's online portals or websites as well as through e-
commerce, m-commerce, internet, intranet, stores, stalls or kiosks set up across India or abroad or 
in any other manner 

 
5. To provide a platform with user generated content and a comparison shopping website offering 

suggestions, experiences, advice, consultancy and services relating to, which includes but is not 
limited to wedding advisor, event advisor and consultants through online platform, mobile 
applications and through any future and known technology. 

 
6. To run training school, institution to provide the industry specific education, relating to, which 

includes but is not limited to, Event Management, Wedding Planning & Management, Makeup 
etc. and training, certification and employment and get affiliation. 

 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 13 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant rules framed there under (including 
any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), and subject to the 
approval of the Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi and Haryana and/or of any other statutory or 
regulatory authority, as may be necessary, consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby 
accorded to amend Part-B of Clause III (The Objects incidental or ancillary to the attainment of the 
main objects are) of the Memorandum of Association of the Company, by inserting the following 
new sub-clauses under Part-B of Clause III, after existing the sub-clause 67 and be numbered 
consecutively as under: 
 

68. To carry on the business of manufacturing, buying, selling, import and export of personal hygiene 
products and personal care products for men, women and children like diapers, sanitary napkins, 
nursing pads, wipe pads and other products of personal care and hygiene.  

 
 

69. To carry on business as manufacturer, trader, importer, exporters of plywood, timber and lumber 
merchants, lumber yard, hardwood, blocks for flooring and such other purpose of all types 
windows, doors, wood pulp, wood wool, masks, spars, derricks, sleepers, tool handles, paneling, 
wood-work, furniture and articles of all description wholly or partly made from wood and to 
carry on the business of logging and lumbering, purchasing, acquiring and leasing timber berths.  
 

70. To undertake the business of providing logistics transportation business to include, without 
limitation, transportation of goods, parcels, commodities and other articles from the 
warehouses of consignors, manufacturers, packers, importers and/or warehouses, either owned 
or leased, to delivery stations of consignors, manufacturers, packers, importers and/or 
warehouses of the company, either owned or leased, by the company; setting of delivery stations 
and warehouses located within a particular city to provide work space and to carry out the 
work of loading, unloading, handling, forwarding, and clearing agents for and on the behalf of 
the owner of goods, luggage, parcels, articles, commodities, merchandise and other movables of 
every description and nature whatsoever in India or any part of the world. 

 
71. To carry on the business of providing suggestions, advice, consultancy, training programs and 

other related services including after sales support services in any form and through any 
medium, including through online portals, websites, magazines, newsletters, periodicals, 



journals in any language, relating to financial products or any other products and equipment’s 
referred to, sold or distributed directly or indirectly by the Company, undertake marketing and 
publicity of the products and activities of the Company, and hiring or employing expert 
personnel as and when considered necessary to provide such services 

 
72. To provide market research and statistical data and to assist in matters of arranging 

inspections, surveys and analysis, and in that respect to provide databases, analytical tools, 
compilation of information and other services, relating to or connected to the activities 
undertaken by the Company. 

 
73. To provide consultancy, advisory, public relations, marketing, training, educational and other 

services relating to the Company's objects and to establish, operate, license training centers for 
the foregoing. 

 
74. To hire, arrange, recruit the person(s) having expertise in the event management, wedding 

management, Makeup and such other field related to the event management, as faculty, guest 
faculty, teacher to provide training and education.  

 
75. To tie up with other institutions, colleges and schools providing the education in the same field 

and provide practical training, and for hiring/placements for students enrolled in our respective 
schools.  

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the approval of the members of the Company be and is hereby 
accorded for commencing and carrying out new business and activities as included in the Object 
Clause of the Company as altered above at such time or times as the Board may in its absolute 
discretion deems fit. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Directors or Company Secretary of the Company be 
and are hereby authorized individually/severally to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as 
may be considered necessary, appropriate, expedient or desirable to give effect to this Resolution.” 

 
5. To consider and approve the Identity of Natural Persons and Ultimate Beneficial Owners (UBO) of 

the proposed allottees for the issuance of 14,90,000 Warrants convertible into Equity Shares and 
2,90,000 Equity shares on Preferential basis w.r.t. the Corrigendum to EGM Notice dated 17th 
September, 2021. 

 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as Ordinary Resolution:  

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the Corrigendum to EGM Notice dated 17th September, 2021 
and in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and subject to such approvals, 
consents and permissions as may be necessary or required, which the Board of Directors of the 
Company (hereinafter referred to  “Board”) is hereby authorised to accept, the consent and 
approval of Members of the Company (“Members) , be and is hereby accorded to approve point 
no. (xi) Table showing details of Proposed Allottees and the Identity of the natural persons who 



are the Ultimate Beneficial Owners for the proposed issue of 14,90,000 Warrants convertible into 
Equity shares and 2,90,000 Equity Shares on Preferential basis mentioned on Page No. 12 of EGM 
Notice dated 6th August, 2021 revised vide Corrigendum to the EGM Notice dated 17th 
September, 2021.” 

6. Any other matter, if any by permission of chairman. 
 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For Touchwood Entertainment Limited 

 
                                                                                                       Sd/- 

Delhi, October 21, 2021                                                                                         Ashima Arora 
                                                                                                                   Company Secretary 

Registered Office:                                                                                                M. No: 58754 
Plot No. 645 Near E.P.T Block,  
Sarojini Nagar, New Delhi – 110023 
 
Corporate Office:  
Thapar Farm-1, opp. Shanti Kunj Main, Sector D-3 Church Mall Road 
Vasant Kunj, New Delhi- 110070 
 
CIN: L92199DL1997PLC088865 
Ph. No.: 9810108253 
E-mail: cs@touchwood.in 
Website: www.touchwood.in 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Notes: 

1. In view of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) vide its circular dated 
May 05, 2020 read with circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and January 13, 2021 (collectively referred to 
as “MCA Circulars”) and Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) vide circular dated May 12, 2020 and 
January 15, 2021 (“SEBI Circulars”) permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (“the AGM”) through 
VC / OAVM, without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being 
held through VC / OAVM. 

 
2. An Explanatory Statement setting out the material facts, pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 

(“Act”) and applicable Secretarial Standard, relating to Special Business to be transacted at the AGM, is annexed 
to the Notice. 

 
3. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a 

proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Since, this 
AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of the Members 
has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be 
available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice. 

 
4. Corporate Members intending to authorise their representatives to participate the AGM through VC/OAVM on 

its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting/during the AGM, pursuant to Section 113 of the Act are 
requested to send a certified copy of the relevant board resolution at least 48 hours before the AGM to the 
Scrutiniser by email through its registered mail addresses to csadvitiyavyas@gmail.com with a copy marked to 
cs@touchwood.in  & evoting@nsdl.co.in  

 
5. Pursuant to Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 10 of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014 read with Regulation 42 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will 
remain closed from Thursday, November 11, 2021 to Wednesday, November 17, 2021 (both days inclusive). 

 
6. Details as required in Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) 

Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) in respect of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the 
AGM is attached as Annexure forming part of this Notice. 

 
7. In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars the notice of AGM and Annual Report are being sent 

in electronic mode to Members whose e-mail address is registered with the depository participant(s). Members 
who have not registered their e-mail address are requested to register the same with their respective depository 
participant(s). In case of any assistance, the members are requested to write an email to cs@touchwood.in 

 
8. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2020-2021 will also be available on the Company’s 

website www.touchwood.in, website of the Stock Exchange i.e. National Stock Exchange of India Limited at 
www.nseindia.com, also on the website of NSDL at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com  

 
9. Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended and Regulation 44 of Listing Regulations, the Company is pleased to 
provide the facility to Members to exercise their right to vote on the resolutions proposed to be passed at AGM 
by electronic means. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities 
Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The 
facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting system as well as venue voting on the date of the 
AGM will be provided by NSDL. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / list of 
Beneficial Owners as on Wednesday, November 10, 2021, i.e., the date prior to the commencement of book 
closure, being the cut-off date, are entitled to vote on the resolutions set forth in this Notice. 

 



10. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the 
Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request to 
Registrar. However, if he/she is already registered with Registrar for remote e-voting then he/she can use 
his/her existing User ID and password for casting the vote. 

 
11. The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares in the paid-up equity share capital of the 

Company as on the cut-off date. 
 
12. In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as per the 

Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the AGM. 
 
13. The remote e-voting period will commence at 09:00 A.M., on Sunday, November 14, 2021 and will end at 05:00 

P.M. on Tuesday, November 16, 2021. 
 
14. Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum 

under Section 103 of the Act. 
 
15. Members who are present in the meeting through VC/OAVM and have not casted their vote on resolutions 

through remote e-voting, shall be allowed to vote through e-voting system during the meeting. 
 
16. The Members who have casted their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend/participate in 

the AGM through VC / OAVM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. 
 
17. The Company has appointed Mr. Advitiya Vyas, Practicing Company Secretary, to act as the Scrutinizer, to 

scrutinize the entire e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. The Members desiring to vote through 
remote e-voting are requested to refer to the detailed procedure given hereinafter. 

 
18. Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice. 
 
19. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholding maintained under Section 170 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and the Register of Contracts or arrangements in which Directors are interested under 
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection in electronic mode. Members can inspect 
the same by sending an e-mail to cs@touchwood.in 

 
20. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide its circular dated April 20, 2018 has mandated 

registration of Permanent Account Number (PAN) and Bank Account Details for all securities holders. Members 
holding shares in physical form are therefore, requested to submit their PAN and Bank Account details to 
Registrar by sending a duly signed letter along with self-attested copy of PAN Card and original cancelled 
cheque. The original cancelled cheque should bear the name of the Member. In the alternative Members are 
requested to submit a copy of bank passbook/statement attested by the bank. Members holding shares in demat 
form are requested to submit the aforesaid information to their respective Depository Participant (DP). 

 
21. Any Member desirous of receiving any information on the Financial Statements or Operations of the Company is 

requested to forward his/her queries to the Company at least seven working days prior to the AGM through e-
mail on cs@touchwood.in. The same shall be replied by the Company suitably. 

 
22. As per Regulation 12 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with 

Schedule I to the said Regulations, it is mandatory for all the Companies to use bank details furnished by the 
investors for distributing dividends, interests, redemption or repayment amounts to them through 
National/Regional/Local Electronic Clearing Services (ECS) or Real Time Gross Settlement (RTGS) or National 
Electronic Funds Transfer (NEFT), National Automated Clearing House (NACH) wherever ECS/ 
RTGS/NEFT/NACH and bank details are available. In the absence of electronic facility, Companies are required 
to mandatorily print bank details of the investors on ‘payable at- par’ warrants or cheques for distribution of 
Dividends or other cash benefits to the investors. In addition to this, if bank details of investors are not available, 
Companies shall mandatorily print the address of the investor on such payment instruments. 



23. Therefore, Members holding shares in demat mode are requested to record the ECS mandate with their DPs 
concerned. 

 
24. Shareholders who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far, are requested to register their e-mail address 

for receiving all communication including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars etc. from the Company 
electronically. 

 
25. Members desirous of making a nomination in respect of their shareholding, under Section 72 of the Companies 

Act, 2013, are requested to send their request to cs@touchwood.in in the prescribed form. 
 
26. Members are requested to note that, dividends if not encashed for a consecutive period of 7 years from the date 

of transfer to Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company, are liable to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund (“IEPF”). The shares in respect of such unclaimed dividends are also liable to be transferred 
to the demat account of the IEPF Authority. In view of this, Members are requested to claim their dividends from 
the Company, within the stipulated timeline. 

 
27. Members may note that the Income Tax Act, 1961 (“Income Tax Act”), as amended by the Finance Act, 2020, 

mandates that Dividends paid or distributed by a Company after the 01st April, 2020 shall be taxable in the 
hands of Members. The Company shall therefore be required to deduct tax at source (“TDS”) at the time of 
making the payment of final dividend. In order to enable Company to determine the appropriate TDS rate as 
applicable, Members are requested to verify the correctness of the records (including residential status and PAN) 
and update the same with your depositories (where shares are held in dematerialized mode) and with the 
Company's RTA (where shares are held in physical mode). Also submit the documents/declarations as 
prescribed in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act. 

 
For Resident Members, taxes shall be deducted at source under Section 194 of the Income Tax Act, as follows: 
 

Shareholders having valid PAN 10% or as notified by the Government of India 
Shareholders not having PAN or invalid PAN 20% 

 
However, no tax shall be deducted on the dividend payable to a resident individual Member if the total 
dividend to be received by them during FY 2020-21 from the Company does not exceed Rs. 5,000, and also in 
cases where Members providing Form No 15G/Form 15H (applicable to an individual age of 60 years or more) 
subject to conditions specified in the Act and other applicable sections of the Income Tax Act by email to 
cs@touchwood.in. 
 
Resident Members may also submit valid document as prescribed under the Income Tax Act to claim a lower/ 
Nil withholding tax. PAN is mandatory for Members while providing Form No.15G/15H or any other 
document as mentioned above. Resident Non-Individual Members (who are exempt from TDS under Section 194 
of the Income Tax Act or covered under Section 196 of the Income Tax Act) are required to submit self-attested 
copy of the valid documentary 
evidence and declaration to avail such exemption under the Income Tax Act. 
 
For Non-Resident Members, taxes are required to be withheld in accordance with Section 195 and other 
applicable sections of the Income Tax Act. For FPI/FII, TDS shall be at the rate of 20% (plus applicable surcharge 
end cess) as per Section 196D of the Income Tax Act. For other nonresident Members, the TDS shall be at the rate 
of 20% (plus applicable surcharge and cess) or as per Section 90 of the Income Tax Act. an option to be governed 
by the provisions of the Double Tax Avoidance Agreement (DTAA) between India and the country of tax 
residence of the member, if they are more beneficial to them. For this purpose, i.e. to avail the benefits under the 
DTAA, other non-resident Members will have to provide the following: 

 
i. Self-attested copy of the PAN Card allotted by the Indian Income Tax authorities. 

ii. Self-attested copy of Tax Residency Certificate (TRC) for FY 2020-2021 obtained from the revenue 
authorities of the country of tax residence of Members. 

iii. Self-declaration Form 10F. 



iv. Self-declaration by the Member of having no taxable presence or a fixed base/Permanent Establishment in 
India. 

v. Self-declaration of Beneficial ownership by the Member, and eligibility to claim treaty benefit, which is not 
impaired in any manner. 

vi. Any other documents as prescribed under the Income Tax Act for lower withholding of taxes, if applicable 
duly attested by the shareholder. 

 
28. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast during the 

AGM, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting and make, not later than 48 hours of conclusion 
of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the 
Chairman or a person authorised by him in writing, who shall countersign the same. 

 
29. The results declared along with the scrutinizer’s report shall be placed on the website of the Company 

www.touchwood.in under the head “Investors” immediately after the results are declared by the Chairman or a 
person authorised by him in writing. The same shall be communicated by the Company to the stock exchange 
i.e. National Stock Exchange of India Limited. 

 
30. Instructions for e-voting and joining the Annual General Meeting are as follows: 

 
I. THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER: - 

 

The remote e-voting period begins on 9:00 A.M. on Sunday, November 14, 2021 and will end on 5:00 P.M. on 
Tuesday, November 16, 2021. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. 

 
How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id 
in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 
 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On 
the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under 
“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to 
enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, 
you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click 
on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see 
e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 



voting during the meeting. 

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available 
at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or 
click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to 
enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with 
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository 
site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of 
NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.  

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 
Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless 
voting experience. 

 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login through their 
user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page 
without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / 
Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or 
www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi. 

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to see the E 
Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote. 

3. If the user is not  registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat 
Account Number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home 
page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered 
Mobile & Email as recorded in the demat Account. After successful 
authentication, user will be provided links for the respective ESP i.e. NSDL 
where the e-Voting is in progress. 



Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in demat 
mode) login through their 
depository participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon 
logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will 
be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein 
you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 
Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to 
login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 
 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk 
by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 
1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30 

Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk 
by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 
022- 23058738 or 022-23058542-43 
 

 
B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code 
as shown on the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ 
with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click 
on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
 

 
Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or CDSL) 
or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat account with 
NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 
12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat account with 16 Digit Beneficiary ID 



CDSL For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** 
then your user ID is 12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical Form. EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered 
with the company. For example if folio number is 
001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 101456001*** 

 

 
5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast 
your vote. 

 
b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial 

password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to 
enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial 

password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from 
NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the 
.pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 
8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The 
.pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those 
shareholders whose email ids are not registered.  

 
6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your password: 

a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL 
or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and 
your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting 
system of NSDL. 

 
7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box. 
8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares 
and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and casting 
your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed 
under “Join General Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for 
which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  



6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 
General Guidelines for shareholders 
1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy 

(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of 
the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to 
scsandcollp@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep 
your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to 
key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User 
Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset 
the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-Voting 
user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free 
no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30 or send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or contact Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, 
Manager or Ms. Soni Singh, Asst. Manager, National Securities Depository Limited, Trade World, ‘A’ Wing, 
4th Floor, Kamala Mills Compound, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai – 400 013, at the designated 
email id – evoting@nsdl.co.in or pallavid@nsdl.co.in or SoniS@nsdl.co.in or at telephone nos.:- +91 22 
24994545, +91 22 24994559, who will also address the grievances connected with  voting by electronic means. 
Members may also write to the Company Secretary at the Company’s email address at cs@touchwood.in 

 
Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id and 
password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 

 
1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the 

share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested 
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to cs@touchwood.in 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary 
ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN 
card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to cs@touchwood.in . If you are an Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 
1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode. 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and 
password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained 
with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and 
email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 
 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:- 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-
voting. 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not 
casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall 
be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM. 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not 
be eligible to vote at the AGM. 



4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on 
the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting. 

 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 
 

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting 
system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. 
After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join General meeting” menu 
against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join General Meeting menu. 
The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be 
displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have 
forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions 
mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 
3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance 

during the meeting. 
4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via 

Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore 
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance 
mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at cs@touchwood.in.The 
same will be replied by the company suitably. 

 
 
 
 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For Touchwood Entertainment Limited 

 
 

 Sd/- 
Delhi, October 21, 2020                                                                                      Ashima Arora 

                                                                                                                   Company Secretary 
Registered Office:                                                                                                M. No: 58754 
Plot No. 645 Near E.P.T Block,  
Sarojini Nagar, New Delhi – 110023 
 
Corporate Office:  
Thapar Farm-1, opp. Shanti Kunj Main, Sector D-3 Church Mall Road 
Vasant Kunj, New Delhi- 110070 
 
CIN: L92199DL1997PLC088865 
Ph. No.: 9810108253 
E-mail: cs@touchwood.in 
Website: www.touchwood.in 
 
 
 



 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 

(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Management & 
Administration) Rules, 2014) 

 

ITEM NO. 4: 

The Company requires to alter the Objects Clause’ contained in its Memorandum of Association (MOA) 
to broaden the scope of its activities considering the expansion plans of developing IPs which the 
Company can look into in the future to commence based on its business potentials and exploit the new 
business opportunities. 
 
Considering the present scenario and for smooth functioning and expansion of the Company, new 
business objects need to be included apart from the existing business objects. Considering the future 
business plans, it is necessary to alter all those clauses, either replacement of new clauses or deletion of 
some existing clauses, with the approval of the members of the Company 
 
In order to make the main object clause of the Memorandum of Association comprehensive and concise, 
it is proposed to substitute existing sub clause (4), (5) and (6) of Clause III(A) of the Object Clause of the 
existing Memorandum of Association as stated in the resolution. 
 
In view of above, a special resolution, for altering the Objects Clause of the Company’s MOA, is proposed 
to the members to seek their prior consent for said alterations. 
 
The approval of the members of the company is required, by way of special resolution pursuant to 
section 13 of the Companies Act, 2013; accordingly, the Board recommended the relevant resolution for 
the approval of members. 
 
None of the Directors of the Company or key managerial personnel or their relatives is, in any way, 
concerned or interested in the resolution. 

 
ITEM NO. 5: 

The Company seeks approval of the shareholders for revision in Point no. (xi) Page.12 of the EGM Notice 
dated August 6, 2021 pursuant to the Corrigendum to the Notice of EGM to the shareholders of the 
Company dated September 27, 2021 for the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting already held on August 31, 
2021. 
 
Point no. (xi) Page.12 of the EGM Notice dated August 6, 2021 i.e. Table showing details of Proposed 
Allottees and the Identity of the natural persons who are the ultimate beneficial owners of the Equity 
Shares stands revised as: 
 

 
 
 



 
Sr. 
No. 

Name of 
Proposed 
Allottees 

Category Ultimate 
beneficial Owner  

Ultimate 
Beneficial 
Owner of 
Corporate 
U.B.O. 

Post Issue 
Shareholding* 

No. of Equity 
Shares/ Equity 
Warrants 

%* 

      
1      

Manjit 
Singh 

Promoter and 
Promoter Group 

Manjit Singh   3457300 28.88 

2 Vijay Arora Promoter and 
Promoter Group 

Vijay Arora   3263470 27.26 

3 Kanika 
Arora 

Promoter and 
Promoter Group 

Kanika Arora   22750 0.19 

4 Rohan 
Joseph 

Individual 
Person other 
than the 
Promoter and 
Promoter Group 

Rohan Joseph   280000 2.34 

5 Eternity 
Trust 

Trust other than 
the Promoter 
and Promoter 
Group 

Sabbas Winifred 
Joseph 

  
  
  
  

560000 4.68 

Punam Chadha 
Joseph 
Rohan Joseph 

Rhea Joseph 

6 Punam 
Chadha 
Joseph 

Individual 
Person other 
than the 
Promoter and 
Promoter Group 

Punam Chadha 
Joseph 

  560000 4.68 

7 Kulbhushan 
Parashar 
HUF 

HUF other than 
Promoter and 
Promoter Group 

Kulbhushan 
Parashar 

  50000 0.42 

8 Dinesh 
Singla 

Individual 
Person other 
than the 
Promoter and 
Promoter Group 

Dinesh Singla   58495 0.49 

9 Manish 
Kumar 
HUF 

HUF other than 
Promoter and 
Promoter Group 

Manish Kumar   50000 0.42 

10 Kinchit 
Sunil 
Kumar 
Mehta 

Individual 
Person other 
than the 
Promoter and 
Promoter Group 

Kinchit Sunil 
Kumar Mehta 

  20000 0.17 

11 Tashi 
Securities 

Body Corporate 
other than 

Dinesh Gupta   
  

15000 0.13 

Ritu Gupta 



Limited Promoter and 
Promoter Group 

Tashi Money 
Changers Pvt. Ltd. 

Mrs. Ritu 
Gupta 
Mrs. Tanya 
Gupta 

Tanya Gupta   
  
  
  

Twisha Gupta 

Gaurav Jain 

Ashi Jain 

12 Innovana 
Techlabs 
Limited 

Body Corporate 
other than 
Promoter and 
Promoter Group 

Innovana 
Thinklabs 
Limited* 

*Innovana 
Thinklabs 
Limited is a 
Listed 
Company. 

15000 0.13 

Priyanka Garg   
  
  
  
  
  

Narendra Kumar 
Garg 
Nancy 

Akash Bansal 

Kapil Garg 

Swarn Kanta 

13 Krisha 
Advisory 
Services 
Private 
Limited 

Body Corporate 
other than 
Promoter and 
Promoter Group 

Mr. Pragnesh M 
Joshi 
Swati Pragnesh 
Joshi 

  
  
  

5000 0.04 

*Assuming allotment of 2,90,000 Equity Shares and also 14,90,000 Equity warrants get converted into 
14,90,000 equity shares. 
 

 
In view of above, an Ordinary resolution, for the approval of the Members of the Company is proposed 
to be passed and accordingly the Board recommended the relevant resolution for the approval of 
members. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE FORTHCOMING 

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 

(Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (LODR), 2015 and Secretarial Standards 
on General Meetings (“SS-2”) issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India) 

 

 

 

Name of Directors Priyanka Arora 

Director Identification Number 
(DIN) 

07931265 

Age 44 years 

Date of appointment 
She is a promoter and Director of the Company and has 
been appointed as Executive Director of the Company 
w.e.f. 06.09.2017 

Expertise in Specific Functional 
areas/ Job Profile 

She holds a bachelors’ degree in Commerce and is 
designated as the creative head of the Company to build 
a creative environment for the team to work in, to 
oversee ideas and projects,  and is responsible for the 
philosophy and the standard of creative output across 
the department developing ideas and hiring & managing 
creative teams with over 8 years of experience. 

Qualification/Awards/ 
Recognitions 

B.Com. 

No. of Equity Share held in the 
Company as on 31st March, 2020 

251785   Equity Shares of `10/- each 

Disclosure of relationships 
between directors inter-se 

Mrs. Priyanka Arora is wife of  Mr. Vijay Arora, Whole-
Time Director of the Company. 

Terms & Condition of Re-
Appointment  

Liable to retire by rotation 

Remuneration Last Drawn by such 
person, if any 

Rs. 22,50,000 /- p.a. 

No. of   Meeting of the Board 
attended during the year 

5 

List of outside Directorship held in 
Public Company 

None 

Chairman/Member of the 
Committee of the Board of 
Directors of other Companies 

None 
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2015: Started venues in the name of VEDA
2014: Started international destination weddings

2016: First Company to handle international presidential election campaign in Gabon
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Over Two decades of experience 

Knowledge, Expert Advice & Guidance

In depth market analysis of the
latest themes & trends

Reputation for fulfilling commitment
 & working with integrity.

One stop solution to all wedding &
event needs.

Tie–ups with all types of hospitality
& event partners

Cater to all kinds of budgeting &
client servicing 

Global presence and experience of 
hosting events at international levels

Empanelment with local City /State 
government bodies
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which has a lot of creativity and spark within them. This
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GROWTH STRATEGY

ORGANIC GROWTH of Business through
client acquisition and geographic expansion. 

EXPANDING EVENT INFRASTRUCTURE CHAIN 
across geographies offering partnership with 
associate firms without incurring capex. 

CREATING INTELLECTUAL PROPERTIES, which
will provide competitive advantages and higher
brand recognition.

INTEGRATION OF DIGITAL INITIATIVES into all
events portfolios resulting in higher consumer
engagement and building social media.
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OUR ESTEEMED CLIENT LIST

Mr. Alok Sanghi - Sanghi Cements , Ahmedabad
Mr. Mukesh Ambani - Ambani Industries , Mumbai
Mr. Ashwini Arora - LT Food PVT. Ltd (Daawat Rice), Gurgaon
Mr . Akshay Taneja - TDI Group , Delhi
Mr. S.S. Bhatia - Bhatia coal Company, Indore
Mr. Manjit Bhatia - Bhatia Coal Company, Indore
Mr Suresh Agarwal - Rupa & Co., Kolkata
Mr.Pradeep Jain - CMD Country Inn (Hotel), Sahibabad.
Mr.N.K. Gupta - R.L. Industries
Mr.Raj Kumar Arora - Dilbagh Group, New Delhi
Mr. Ashok Kankariya - Sumeet Group, Raipur
Mr. Jitender Kejriwal - Sonear Industries Ltd. New Delhi
Mr. Shakti Nath - Logix Group
Mr. Sanjay Ghodawat - SGI, Kohlapur
Ms. Sweta Chaturvedi - Chaturvedi & Co. , New Delhi
Mr. Vinay Singhal - Eastman Impex
Mr. Narottam Somani - Mitex Group, South Africa
Mr. V.C.Burman - Dabur Group
Mr. V.K. Arora - Daawat Bamati Rice, Gurgaon
Mr. Narendra Bansal - Intex Group, New Delhi

Mr. Surinder Arora - Virgo Group, New Delhi
Mr Pradeep Garg - Kundan Group, New Delhi
Mr.Sanjeev Aeren - Orenda Corp. New Delhi
Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal - TRB Group, Ludhiana
Mr.Sushil Baderwal - Baderwal Group, Gurgaon
Mr. Mukesh Garg - New Delhin 
Mr.Ashok Munjal - Sunbeam Auto India
Mr. Manoj Sethi - AMB Developers, New Delhi
Mr. Anil Babbar – Supertech
Mr. Rajan Trehan - Hymatic Agro , New Delhi 
Mr. Pradeep Kothari – Dubai 
Mr. Pankaj Bansal - M3M Group, Gurgaon 
Mr. Girish Matlanil – Indore
Mr. Mohinder Goyal - Janpath Estates
Mr. Anil Kotawala - Kotawala Jewels, New Delhi 
Mr. Gaurav Gupta - Aerens Group, New Delhi
Mr.Pawan Garg - Radhey Mohan Drive, New Delhi
Sh. Satpal Ji Maharaj - M.P. Rajya Sabha
Mr. Ashok Arora - NIIT, New Delhi
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CORPORATE INFORMATION



 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT     
 
 
Dear Shareholders,   

The Directors of your Company take pleasure in presenting the 24th Annual Report of your 
company along with the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 
2021. Further, in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 the company has made all requisite 
disclosures in the Board Report with the objective of accountability and transparency in its 
operations and to make you aware about its performance and

 
future perspective.

 
 

OPERATIONS-
 

FINANCIALS
 

 

The Company’s financial performance
 

for the year ended March 31, 2021 is summarised below:                                                                                                        

(Amount)
 

   
Current Year ended

 
Previous Year Ended

 

   
31/03/2021

 
31/03/2020

 
 

Revenue  from  Operations  
 

10,05,80,856.20
 

20,80,88,890.55
 

 

Other Income

 

5,76,022.19

 

42,59,720.98

 

 

Less: Employee Benefit Expenses

 

2,29,15,160.00

 

4,03,80,322.00

 

 

Less: Finance Cost

 

5,16,642.93

 

6,39,980.68

 

 

Less: Depreciation & Amortization

 

62,32,176.96

 

61,20,134.00

 

 

Less: Other Expenses

 

5,72,44,834.63

 

13,94,15,194.14

 

 

Profit Before Tax & Exceptional Items

 

1,42,48,063.87

 

2,57,92,980.71

 

 

Exceptional Items

 

-

 

-

 

 

Profit Before Tax

 

1,42,48,063.87

 

2,57,92,980.71

 
 

Current Tax

 

43,24,403.00

 

73,15,570.00

 
 

Past Period

 

3,17,134.00

 

15,02,089.70

 
 

Deferred Tax

 

(1,97,837.00)

 

(6,68,209.39)

 
 

Profit After Tax

 

98,04,363.87

 

1,76,43,530.40

 
 

Other Comprehensive Income

 

25,20,299.00

 

(13,40,752.32)

 
 

Total Comprehensive Income

 

123,24,662.87

 

1,63,02,778.08

 
 

Add: Balance brought forward from previous years

 

2,09,85,909.74

 

4,85,15,759.67

 
 

Amount available for appropriation

 

3,33,10,572.61

 

6,48,18,537.75

 

A

 

Appropriations:

   
 

Less: Dividend paid on Equity Shares including DDT

 

-

 

1,22,77,388.00

 
 

Less: Bonus Equity Shares issued during the year

 

-

 

3,15,55,240.00

 
 

Balance carried to Balance Sheet

 

3,33,10,572.61

 

2,09,85,909.75
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STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS   

 
The Highlights of the Company’s performance for the year ended March 31, 2021 are as under: 

Revenue (Net) down by 51.66% to Rs. 1006 Lakhs in FY21 against Rs. 2080 Lakhs in 
FY20. 
EBITDA including other income fell by 35.5% to Rs.210 Lakhs FY21 Vs Rs.326 Lakhs FY20. 
EBIDTA margin increased by 524 basis points to 20.88% in FY21 Vs 15.64% in FY20. 
PBT fell by 44.76% to Rs.142 Lakhs in FY21 Vs Rs.258 Lakhs in FY20. 
PAT fell by 44.43% to Rs.98 Lakhs in FY21 Vs Rs.176 Lakhs in FY20. 
Pat Margin increased by 127 basis point to 9.75% in FY21 Vs 8.48% in FY20.  
EPS fell by 24.37% to Rs. 1.21 in FY21 against Rs.1.60 in FY20. 
ROCE declined by 9.67% to 10.10% in FY21 Vs 19.77% in FY20. 
ROE declined by 7.11% to 7.26% in FY21 Vs 14.37% in FY20. 

 
The Company is engaged in Event Management activities in India and abroad. The management 
of the company is making its sincere efforts to increase the volume of business in their best 
efficient manner. 
 
DIVIDEND 
 
The Board in its meeting held on 29th June, 2021, recommended a final dividend of Rs. 0.12 per 
equity share for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2021, subject to the approval of the 
shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.  
 
CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, if any 
 
There is no material change in the nature of business during the year. 
 
TRANSFER TO RESERVES 
 
The Company has a closing balance of Rs. 3,33,10,572.61 /- (Rupees Three Crores Thirty-Three 
Lakhs Ten Thousand Five Hundred and Seventy-Two Decimal Sixty-One) as Reserves and Surplus 
as on 31.03.2021. 
 
The closing balance of Reserve and Surplus is bifurcated as follows: 
 

S. No. Particulars Amount 

1. Balance at the beginning of Year 2,09,85,909.74 

2. Current year’s profit 98,04,363.87 

3.  Other Comprehensive Income 25,20,299.00 

4. Amount utilized during the year for bonus issue - 

5. Dividend including DDT - 

Total 3,33,10,572.61 
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF 
THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE 
COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THIS 
REPORT.

 
 There have been no other material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of 

the Company since the close of financial year i.e. since March 31, 2021 and to the date of this 
report. Further, it is hereby confirmed that there has been no change in the nature of business of 
the Company.

 
 DEPOSITS

 
 During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits, thus far, within the 

meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
 

Rules, 2014. 
 

 
Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments 

 
Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are given in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

 

SHARE CAPITAL  
 

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 20,00,00,000 divided into 2,00,00,000 Equity 
Shares of Rs. 10/-  (Rupees Ten only) each. The Paid up Capital of the Company is Rs. 
10,18,12,450 divided into 1,01,81,245 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each. 

 

There was
 

no public issue, rights issue, bonus issue or preferential issue, etc. during the year. The 
Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights, sweat equity shares, nor has it 
granted any stock options.

 
 

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY / JOINT VENTURE / ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
 

 

As on 31st

 

March, 2021, the Company does not have any subsidiary or joint venture or associate 
company.

 
 

LISTING OF SHARES:

 

Your Company’s equity shares are listed and traded on National Stock Exchange of India Ltd 

(‘NSE’) with ISIN INE486Y01013 & Symbol TOUCHWOOD. The Company has paid the annual 

listing fee for the FY 2020-21 to the said Stock Exchanges.
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Following the provisions of Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, all Related Party 
contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial year had 
been in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis, with Audit Committee having a 
domain role: the Board of Directors brought into picture, wherever necessary and/or obligatory. 
Therefore, the provision of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 were not attracted. There are 
no materially significant Related Party Transaction during the year under review made by the 
Company with Promoters, Directors or other designated person which may have a potential 
conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Thus, disclosure in Form AOC-2 is not required. 
Pertinent, in this context, is to say that, during the year, the Company has not entered into any 
contract / arrangement / transaction with related parties, which could be considered material in 
accordance with the policy of the Company on materiality of related party transactions.  

During the year, the Company has amended the Policy on materiality of related party transactions 
and dealing with related party transactions in line with the requirements of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018. The key changes 
include, inter-alia, threshold limits for determining materiality. The amended policy is available on 
our website at www.touchwood.in. 
Related party transactions were disclosed to the Board on regular basis. Details of related party 
transactions may be referred to in Note 29 of the Financial Statements. 

DETAILS OF MATERIAL CHANGES FROM THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 
 
The outbreak of corona virus (COVID-19) pandemic globally and in India is causing significant 
disturbance and slowdown of economic activity. Operations and revenue have been impacted 
due to COVID-19. 

INITIATIVES DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW 

MakeMeUp  
MakeMeUp has successfully organized 5 virtual masterclasses with Industry’s renowned 
makeup artist i.e Leena Bhushan, Guneet Virdi, Chandni Singh, Kriti DS & Vardhan Nayak 
having over 6500+ participants across the globe. 

MakeMeUp has released an upbeat Punjabi number ‘Hauli Hauli’ sung by Navraj Hans & 
Ashish Chabbra which features top social media influencers and renowned names of the 
makeup industry on the 1st of August,2021.  

MakeMeUp is coming up with India’s first ever digital reality show based on makeup! Through 
a rigorous auditioning process with over 2500 entries we finalized 16 contestants that would 
battle it out to be the ‘MakeMeUp Artist of the Year’. The production & shoot for which is 
completed and is now under the process of editing, we aim at releasing it at the earliest. 

Gourmet Entertainment Show  
The Gourmet Entertainment Show is coming up with a web series “Gourmet rides” on 
showcasing caterers based on the backdrop of bike rides. The production & shoot for which is 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

completed and is now under the process of editing, we aim at releasing it at the earliest on 
YouTube soon.  

Touchwood Wedding School  
Touchwood Wedding School has successfully completed completed 2 batches and has 
commenced 3rd batch in July, 2021. We have trained almost 80+ professionals. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), is presented in a separate section, forming part of the 
Annual Report. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Corporate governance is an ethically driven business process that is committed to values and 
aimed at enhancing an organization’s brand and reputation. This is ensured by taking ethical 
business decisions and conducting business with firm commitment to values, while meeting 
stakeholders’ expectations. Further Corporate Governance is based on the principles of 
conducting the business with all integrity, fairness and being transparent with all the transactions, 
making the necessary disclosures and decisions, complying with the laws of the land, 
accountability and responsibility towards the stakeholders and commitment of conducting the 
business in an ethical manner. At Touchwood, it is ensured that Company’s affairs are managed 
in a fair and transparent manner. This is vital to continue to gain and retain the trust of its 
stakeholders. A separate section on Corporate Governance standards followed by your Company 
and the relevant disclosures, as stipulated under the Listing Regulations, Companies Act, 2013 
and Rules made thereunder, forms part of this Annual Report. 

A Certificate from M/s Advitiya Vyas & Company, Practising Company Secretary, confirming the 
compliance by the Company to the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under the 
Listing Regulations, is annexed to the Report on Corporate Governance, which forms part of this 
Annual Report. 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

The Company’s policy is to maintain an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive 
Directors on the Board. The composition of the Board is as follows: 

Managing Director Mr. Manjit Singh 

Executive Director 
Mr. Vijay Arora 
Mrs. Jaswinder Kaur 
Mrs. Priyanka Arora 

Non-Executive Independent 
Directors 

Mrs. Paruldeep Kaur 
Mr. Michael Anthony Cruz 
Mr. Manjeet Singh 
Mr. Vijay Kumar Pugalia 

Key Managerial Personnel 
Mr. Dinesh Singla, Chief Financial Officer 
Ms. Ashima Arora, Company Secretary & Compliance 
Officer  

All the Non – Executive Independent Directors are not disqualified to be appointed as such under 
the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder and shall not 
be subject for determination by retirement of Directors by rotation. 
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DIRECTOR RETIRING BY ROTATION 

Pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with the Article of 
Association of the Company, Mrs. Priyanka Arora, Director of the Company, shall retire by rotation 
at the ensuing AGM and being eligible, has offered herself for re-appointment. Information as 
required under Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations is provided in the Notice of 24th AGM. 

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

The Company has received necessary declarations from each Independent Director as per the 
provisions of Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, that they meet the criteria of 
Independence as laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 (1) 
(b) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 (“the Listing Regulations”). 

There has been no change in the circumstances offering their states as independent directors of 
the company so as to qualify themselves to the companies act 2013 and the relevant regulations. 

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 

Regular meetings of the Board are held to discuss and decide on various business policies, 
strategies, financial matters and other businesses. The schedule of the Board/Committee 
meetings to be held in the forthcoming quarter is circulated to the Directors in advance to enable 
them to plan their schedule for effective participation in the meetings. 

During the year under review, nine Board Meetings were convened and the gap between the 
meetings was as per the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 

S. No. Date of Board Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors 
Present 

1. 30th June, 2020 8 6 
2. 28th August, 2020 8 6 
3. 9th September, 2020 8 7 
4. 9th November, 2020 8 6 
5. 28th January, 2021 8 8 

Additionally, several Committee meetings were held during the year including Audit Committee. 
The detailed information on the meetings of the Committees is included in the Report on 
Corporate Governance, which forms part of this Annual Report. 

SEPARATE MEETINGS OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS  
In terms of requirement of schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, the independent directors of 
the company met separately on the 28th January, 2021 to inter alice review the performance of 
non-independent directors (including the chairman), the entire board the quality, quantity and 
timelines of the flow of information between the management and board. 

POLICY ON DIRECTOR’S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION  
The current policy is to have an appropriate mix of Executive and Independent Directors to 
maintain the independence of the Board, and separate its functions of governance and 
management. As on the 31st March, 2021, the Board consists of eight members, one of whom is  
Whole-Time Director, one Managing Director, two are Executive Directors and four are 
Independent Directors including one woman Director. The Board periodically evaluates the need 
for change in its composition and size. 
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The Policy of the Company on Director’s appointment and remuneration including criteria for 
determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Directors and other matters 
provided under Section 178 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 is adopted by the Board. The 
remuneration paid to the Directors is as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the 
rules made thereunder. Policy for Selection of Directors, determining Director’s 
Independence and Appointment and Remuneration Policies are annexed as Annexure – I 

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY AND CRITERIA FOR MATTERS UNDER SECTION 178 

As stipulated under Section 178 of the Act and based on the recommendation of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, the Board has approved a Nomination and Remuneration Policy of 
the Company. The Policy documents the mechanism for appointment, cessation, evaluation and 
remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of the 
Company. Information on the Policy and details of the criteria for determining qualifications, 
positive attributes and other matters in terms of Section 178 of the Act are provided in the 
Corporate Governance Report. 

INFORMATION ON BOARD MEETING PROCEDURE AND ATTENDANCE DURING THE FINANCIAL 
YEAR 2020 - 21 

The Board meetings of the Company are conducted as per the provisions of the Act, Listing 
Regulations and applicable Secretarial Standards. Information as mentioned in the Act and 

Schedule II to the Listing Regulations and all other material information, as may be decided by the 
management, is placed for consideration of the Board. Details on the matters to be discussed 
along with relevant supporting documents, data and other information is also furnished in the 
form of detailed agenda to the Board and the Committees concerned, to enable directors take 
critical decisions and accordingly advise the management. 

Details regarding information furnished to the Board members, number of Committee and Board 
meetings held during the year along with attendance record of each director has been disclosed 
in the Corporate Governance Report of the Company. 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD 
 The Company has devised a Policy for performance evaluation of Independent Directors, Board, 
Committees and other individual Directors, which includes criteria for performance evaluation of 
the Non-Executive Directors and Executive Directors. On the basis of the laid out Policy, a process 
of evaluation was followed by the Board for its own performance and that of its Committees and 
individual Directors including Chairman. 

The Company is committed to benchmark itself with best practices and standards in all areas 
including Corporate Governance. To this end, the Board has the analytical and functional support 
of Committee of Directors, Audit Committee & Nomination & Remuneration Committee. The 
system brings insight & effectiveness in to the designated areas of Corporate Governance. 
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD  

 Currently, the Board has Three Committees which have been established in compliance with the 
requirements of the business and relevant provisions of the applicable laws and statutes. These 
are:

 
 

1. Audit Committee,  
2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 
3. Stakeholders Relationship Committee  

 
The details with respect to the composition, terms of reference, number of meetings held etc. of 
these Committees are given in the Report on Corporate Governance which forms part of this 
Annual Report.  

 

INSIDER TRADING POLICY FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING AND FAIR DISCLOSURE OF 
UNPUBLISHED PRICE SENSITIVE INFORMATION 

 

In terms of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the Company has adopted 
a “Insider Trading Policy”. The Insider Trading Policy is

 
drawn up on the principle that the 

Company’s directors and employees owe a fiduciary duty, amongst others, to the shareholders of 
the Company to place the interest of shareholders above their own and conduct their personal 
securities transactions in a manner that does not give rise to any conflict of interest. These codes 
lay down the mechanism for ensuring timely and adequate disclosure of Unpublished Price

 

38



Sensitive Information (“UPSI”) to the investor community by the Company to enable them take 
informed investment decisions with regard to its securities. 
 
The Insider Trading Policy prescribes the procedure for trading in securities of the Company and 
the disclosures to be made by persons covered under the Insider Trading Policy with respect to 
their shareholding in the Company, both direct and indirect. 
 

PARTICULARS REGARDING CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND 
 FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

 
The disclosures required to be made under the provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of conservation of 
energy, technology absorption are not applicable to the Company as the Company is engaged in 
the service sector of Entertainment Business and is not involved in any manufacturing activity. 
Foreign exchange earnings and outgo of the Company are nil. 
 
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of Companies Act, 2013, your Directors state that: 
 
1. In the preparation of annual accounts for the year ended the 31st March, 2021, the applicable 

accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule III to the Act, have been 
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

 
2. The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the Company as on the 31st March, 2021 and of the Profit of the 
Company for the year ended on that date; 

 
3. The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities, and 

 
4. The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis. 
 
5. The Directors have laid down Internal Financial Controls to be followed by the Company have 

been laid down and that such internal financial controls are adequate and operating 
effectively; and 

 
6. The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

the applicable laws and that such Systems are adequate and operating effectively. 
 
POLICIES OF THE COMPANY 
 
The Company is committed to high ethical standards in its business transactions guided by its 
value systems. The Listing Regulations mandate formulation of certain policies for listed 
companies. Accordingly, the Board of Directors has from time to time framed and approved 
policies as required by the Listing Regulations as well as under the Act. These policies are 
reviewed by the Board at periodic intervals. 
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Some of the key policies that have been adopted till date are as follows: 
 

S. No. Name of Policy 

1. Code of Conduct Policy 
2. Policy for determining Materiality of Events 
3. Policy on dealing with Related Party Transaction 
4. Remuneration Policy 
5. Vigil Mechanism & Whistle Blower Policy 
6. Familiarization Policy for Independent Directors 
7. Stakeholders Relationship Committee Policy 
8. Terms and Conditions of Appointment of Independent Directors 
9. Policy of Audit Committee 
10. Policy for Preservation of Documents 
11. Criteria for payment to Non-Executive Directors 
12. Code of Conduct and Fair Disclosure for Prohibition of Insider Trading 

 
The Polices are available on the Company’s website on the link www.touchwood.in/investor.php  
 
BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
Pursuant to Section 134 (3) (n) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company may constitute a 
Business Risk Management Committee which shall be entrusted with the responsibility to assist 
the Board in: 

Formulating and implementing Risk Management Policy; 

Overseeing and approving the Company’s enterprise wide risk management framework; and 
 

Overseeing that all the risks that the Company faces such as strategic, financial, credit, 
market, liquidity, property, IT, legal, regulatory, reputational, employee and other risks have 
been identified and assessed and there is an adequate risk management infrastructure in 
place capable of addressing those risks. 

 
At present the Company has not identified any element of risk which may perceptibly threaten the 
existence of the Company. 
 
FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMMES 
 
With a view to familiarising the Independent Directors with the Company’s operations, as required 
under regulation 25(7) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, the Company held familiarisation 
programmes for the independent directors on an ongoing and continuous basis. The details of 
such familiarisation programmes are placed on website 
https://touchwood.in/pdf/2021/DETAILS-OF-FAMILIARIASATION-POLICY-FY-2020-2021.pdf  
 
VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY  
The Vigil Mechanism of the Company, which also incorporates a Whistle Blower Policy is in place. 
There has been no case to report for the FY 2020-2021, no individual was denied access to the 
Audit Committee for reporting concerns, if any. 
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DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLACE PREVENTION, 

PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 
 
In order to prevent sexual harassment of women at work place an act “The Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace” (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 has been notified on 9th 
December, 2013. Under the said Act every company is required to set up an Internal Complaints 
Committee to look into complaints relating to sexual harassment at work place of any women 
employee. 

Your Company has adopted a policy for prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at 
workplace and has set up a Committee for implementation of said policy. During the year 
Company has not received any complaint of harassment. 

AUDITORS  
M/s VSD & Associates, Chartered Accountants (FRN No.:008726N), hold office up to the 
conclusion of the 25th AGM. 

M/s VSD & Associates were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company from the 
conclusion of 21st AGM i.e. from 4th August, 2018. In terms of the proviso to Section 139(1) of the 
Act, the said appointment was subject to ratification by Members at every AGM held during the 
tenure of their appointment. The proviso to Section 139(1) of the Act has been omitted by the 
Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 with effect from 7th May, 2018; accordingly, the 
requirement of ratifying appointment of statutory auditors at every annual general meeting, 
during their tenure of appointment, has been dispensed with. 

 The Auditors’ Reports, including the one on Internal Financial Controls, does not carry any 
observation or infirmity in the Company’s affairs. 

 SECRETARIAL AUDITORS  
As required u/s 204 of the Companies Act 2013 and rules hereunder, M/s Advitiya Vyas & 
Company, Practicing Company Secretary shall be reappointed as the Secretarial Auditors of the 
company to conduct Secretarial Audits for the year ended 31st March 2022. 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT  
The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31st March 2021 is set out in Annexure-II 
to this report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or 
adverse remark. 
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INTERNAL AUDITORS  
The board on the recommendation of audit committee approved the appointment of M/s AAVN  & 
Associates, Chartered Accountants, (FRN No. 013224C), Internal Auditors, for conducting the 
internal audit of the company for the financial fear 2021-2022. 
 
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ADEQUACY THEREOF 
 The Company’s internal control systems as laid down to commensurate with the nature of its 
business, the size and the complexity of its operations. These are tested and certified by Statutory 
as well as Internal Auditors and cover all factories and key areas of business. Significant audit 
observations and follow up action thereon are reported to the Audit Committee. The Audit 
Committee, as aforesaid, reviews adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s internal control 
environment and monitors the implementation of audit recommendations. 

 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN  
In terms of Sections 92(3) and 134(3) (a) of the Act and Rules made there under, extract of the 
Annual Return in Form No. MGT-9 is annexed as Annexure- III to this Report. 

 PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES 
 A Statement containing Particulars of Employees as required under Section 197(12) read with 
Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
is annexed in Annexure- IV. 
 
Further pursuant to the provision to Section 136(1) of the Companies Act 2013 read with the Rule 
5(2) of the companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, will 
be sent to the members of the Company on request. 

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:  

Provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility pursuant to the provisions of the Section 135 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable on our Company. 

INVESTOR EDUCATION & PROTECTION FUND  
During the year under review there is no amount which is required to be transferred to the 
investors education & protection fund as per the provisions of section 125 (2) of the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT  
The business responsibility report as stipulated under regulation 34(2)(f) of SEBI (LODR) 
regulation is presented in a separate section forming part of the annual report. 

 

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS 
OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN 
FUTURE 

 
There was no significant and material order passed by the regulators or Courts or Tribunals 
impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future. 
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SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ISSUED BY THE INSTITUTE OF COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA 
(ICSI) 

The Directors state that applicable Secretarial Standards have been followed during the financial 
year 2020-21. 

FRAUD REPORTING 

During the year under review, no fraud has been reported by Auditors under sub-section (12) of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

Statements in the Annual Report, including those which relate to Management Discussion and 
Analysis, describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates and expectations, may 
constitute ‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. 
Although the expectations are based on reasonable assumptions, the actual results might differ. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS AND APPRECIATION 

Your Directors take this opportunity to express their deep and sincere gratitude to the Clients, 
Customers and Shareholders of the Company for their trust and patronage, as well as to the 
Bankers, Securities and Exchange Board of India, National Stock Exchange, Government of India 
and other Regulatory Authorities for their continued co-operation, support and guidance. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Touchwood Entertainment Limited 

   Sd/-           Sd/- 
   Vijay Arora        Manjit Singh
   Whole-Time Director 

 
Chairman & Managing Director 

 DIN: 00996193            
  

DIN: 00996149 
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Annexure-I to Director Report, 2021 

POLICY FOR IDENTIFICATION OF PERSONS FOR APPOINTMENT AND

REMOVAL AS DIRECTOR AND SENIOR MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

�CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING QUALIFICATIONS.
 

The Committee shall: 

 
1. Identify and ascertain the honesty, reliability, qualification, expertise and experience of the 

person for appointment as Director or Senior Managerial Personnel and recommend the Board 

accordingly. 

 

2. The committee must ensure itself regarding the capabilities and eligibilities of the proposed 

appointee(s) and must ensure that the proposed appointee shall be able to devote the required 

time as may be necessary. 

 
3. The Committee shall be at discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience 

possessed by the person is adequate for the proposed position. 

 
4. Any other assessment as may be required must be carried out by the Committee and on being 

satisfied with the overall eligibility of the person, the committee shall recommend his/her 

appointment to the Board accordingly. 

 
5. The Committee must always ensure that the appointment of the Directors and the Senior 

Management Personnel is as per all the applicable laws, rules and  regulations. 

 
6. The Committee may recommend to the Board with the reasons recorded in writing, the removal 

of Director or Senior Managerial Personnel based on any disqualification that may be applicable 

as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under or for any other 

reasons as may be justified by the Committee. 

 

TERM OF APPOINTMENT 
 

The term of appointment of Managing Director/Whole Time Directors and Independent Directors 

of the Company shall be as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made 

there under, subject to amendments as may be notified from time to time. 

 

INDEPENDENCE OF A DIRECTOR 
 
With respect to the Independent Directors of the Company the committee shall additionally 

ensure their Independence as per the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
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made there under and as per Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 i.e. SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and as per the 

amendments as may be notified from time to time. 

RETIREMENT
The Directors of the Company shall be subject to retirement as per the applicable provisions of 

Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there-under as amended from time to time. 

 

The Committee will be at its discretion to recommend retention of Directors even after they have 

attained the retirement age as per the applicable provisions for the benefit of the Company 

subject to fulfillment of the requirements as mentioned in Companies Act, 2013, the rules made 

there-under and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

POLICY FOR EVALUATION OF PERFORMANCE OF BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES,

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS - ..Positive Attributes.

1. Evaluation of performance of Board and Individual Directors shall be based on: 

a. Achievement of financial/business targets as fixed by the Board; 

b. Proper development, management and execution of business plans; 

c. Display of leadership qualities i.e. correctly anticipating business trends and opportunities; 

d. Establishment of an effective organization structure; 

e. Participation in the Board/Committee Meetings; 

f. Integrity and maintenance of confidentiality; 

g. Any other criteria that may be considered necessary for the evaluation of the performance of 

the Board may be considered by the Committee. 

 

2. Evaluation of performance of Committee shall be based on: 

a. Discharge of its functions and duties as per its terms of reference; 

b. Effectiveness of the suggestions and recommendations received; 

c. Conduct of its meeting and procedures followed in this regard. 
 

3. Evaluation of Independent directors shall be based on: 

a. Performance of the directors and 

b. Fulfillment of the independence criteria as specified under Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations, 2015 and their independence from the management. 

Provided that in the above evaluations, the directors who are subject to evaluation shall not 

participate. 
 

4. Review of the Implementation of this policy: 

The Committee shall review the implementation and compliance of this policy at least once a 

year. 

 

45



 

POLICY FOR REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL SENIOR

MANAGEMENT AND OTHER EMPLOYEES: � 

 

1. The remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and Other 

employees must be in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 

made thereunder and as per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 as per other applicable provisions as amended from time to time. 

 

2. The committee must ensure that: 

a. The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and 

motivate directors and key managerial personnel of the quality required to run the company 

successfully. 

b. The committee must also ensure that the remuneration of all directors, key managerial 

personnel, senior management and other employees is at par with their performance, 

qualifications, experience and capabilities. The remuneration must be fair enough to motivate 

and retain the competent employees of the Company. 

c. Remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a 

balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance 

objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals. 

 

CRITERIA OF MAKING PAYMENTS TO NON �EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

1. Overall remuneration should be reflective of the size of the Company, complexity of the 

sector/industry/company’s operations and the company’s capacity to pay the remuneration. 

 

2. Independent Directors ("ID") and Non-Independent Non- Executive Directors ("NED") may be paid 

sitting fees (for attending the meetings of the Board and of committees of which they may be 

members) and commission within regulatory limits. Quantum of sitting fees may be subject to 

review on a periodic basis, as required. 

 
3. Within the parameters prescribed by law, the payment of sitting fees and commission will be 

recommended by the NRC and approved by the Board. 

 
4. Overall remuneration (sitting fees and commission) should be reasonable and sufficient to attract, 

retain and motivate Directors aligned to the requirements of the Company (taking into 

consideration the challenges faced by the Company and its future growth imperatives). 

 
5. Overall remuneration practices should be consistent with recognized best practices. 

 

6. The aggregate commission payable to all the NEDs and IDs will be recommended by the NRC to 

the Board based on Company’s performance, profits, return to investors, shareholder value 

creation and any other significant qualitative parameters as may be decided by the Board. 

 
7. The NRC will recommend to the Board, the quantum of commission for each Director based upon 

the outcome of the evaluation process which is driven by various factor including attendance and 

time spent in the Board and committee meetings, individual contributions at the meetings and 

contributions made by Directors other than in meetings. 
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8. In addition to the sitting fees and commission, the Company may pay to any Director such fair and

reasonable expenditure, as may have been incurred by the Director while performing his/her role

as a Director of the Company.    This could include reasonable expenditure incurred by the Director

for attending Board/Board committee meetings, general meetings, court convened meetings,

meetings with shareholders/creditors/ management, site visits, induction and training (organized

by the Company for Directors) and in  obtaining professional  advice from independent advisors

in the furtherance of his/her duties as a director. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Touchwood Entertainment Limited 

   Sd/-              Sd/- 
   Vijay Arora           Manjit Singh 
   Whole-Time Director Chairman & Managing Director 
 DIN: 00996193         DIN: 00996149 
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Annexure�II to Director Report, 2021 
 
 

FORM NO. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31st MARCH, 2021 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To,  

The Members, 

Touchwood Entertainment Limited  

Plot No. 645, Near E.P.T. Block,  

Sarojini Nagar, New Delhi-110023 

 

Scope of Audit 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 

the adherence to good corporate practices by Touchwood Entertainment Limited (hereinafter 

called ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a 

reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing 

my opinion thereon.  

 

Opinion 

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms & returns filed 

and other records maintained by the Company alongwith the information provided by the 

Company’s officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial 

audit, I hereby report that, in my opinion the Company has during the audit period covering the 

financial year ended on March 31st, 2021, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder 

and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to 

the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.  

 

Statutory Provisions 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;  

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;  

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to 

the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 

Commercial Borrowings –  There is no FDI/ODI received or any External Commercial 

Borrowings raised by the Company during the audit period ; 
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(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): -  

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;  

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015;  

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018;  

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with 

client; 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 

Regulations, 2009 - Not applicable during the audit period; 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 

2018 - Not applicable during the audit period;  

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008 - Not applicable during the audit period;  

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 

Regulations, 2014 - Not applicable during the audit period;  

(vi) Other Applicable Laws informed by the management of the Company: 

(a) The Income Tax Act, 1961; 

(b) The Goods and Service Tax, 2017; 

(c) The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development, 2006; 

(d) The Competition Act, 2002; 

(e) The Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952; 

(f) The Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948; 

(g) The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965; 

(h) The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972; 

(i) The Payment of Wages Act, 1936; 

(j) The Minimum Wages Act, 1948; 

(k) Child Labour (Prohibition and Regulation), 1986 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:  

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India,  

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with National Stock Exchange (NSE). 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

I further report that  

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 

Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. No changes in the composition of 

the Board of Directors took place during the period under review. 
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Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 

notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and 

obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 

meaningful participation at the meeting.  

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and 

recorded as part of the minutes.  

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate 

with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 

laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.  

Limitation   

As an auditor I have made my whole efforts to audit the documents, systems and processes 

followed within the Company to ensure the good corporate governance in it and to ensure that 

the interest of the stakeholders of the company is safe and intact, even then there are certain 

limitations to this report which are as under: 

(i) It is the responsibility of the Management of the Company to maintain the books, records 

and documents of the Company in the manner as provided under the various Laws. My 

responsibility is only to express my opinion after auditing the records as produced before me 

by the management of the Company. 

(ii) I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the Financial Records and 

Financial Statements of the Company. I have verified the compliance of Income Tax Return 

filing during the financial year under review. 

(iii) Whenever required, I have taken the management representation for the compliance of the 

provisions or non-applicability of any particular provision of any Act as mentioned in the 

Management Representation Letter. 

(iv) The Secretarial Audit Report is not an assurance for future viability of the Company and for 

the appropriateness of the decisions of the management in relation to run the business of 

the Company. 

(v) The scope of this Report is limited to the Laws mentioned in the Management 

Representation Letter (The MRL) only. If any other Law is applicable on the Company for the 

time being in force and not reported in the MRL, the same has not been reported in this 

Report as well.  

For Advitiya Vyas & Company 

Practicing Company Secretaries 

 Sd/- 

CS Advitiya Vyas 

ACS: 44150, CP No. 16257 
 

Date: 25/08/2021 

Place: Delhi 

UDIN: A044150C000828670 
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Annexure�III to Director Report, 2021 
 
 

Form�MGT�9 
 
Extracts of Annual Return as on financial year ended on 31.03.2021 

 
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act,2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 
 

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS: 
 

1. CIN L92199DL1997PLC088865 

2. Registration Date 01.08.1997 

3 Name of the Company TOUCHWOOD ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED  

4. Category/Sub-Category of the Company Company limited by shares 

5. Address of the Registered office and contact details Plot No. 645 Near E.P.T Block, Sarojini Nagar, New 
Delhi, South West Delhi -110023 
Phone No.: +91 9810108253  

6. Whether Listed Company Yes 

7. Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and 
Transfer Agent, if any 

M/s Skyline Financial Services Private Limited 
D-153 A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase – I, 
New Delhi-110 020 
+91-011-40450193-97 
E-mail: admin@skylinerta.com 

 
 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY  
 
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated: 
 

Sr. 

No. 

Name and Description of main products/ 

services 

NIC Code of the 

Product/ service 

%  to total turnover of the company 

1 EVENT MANAGEMENT R1 100% 

 

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name And Address of 
The Company 

CIN/GLN Holding/ Subsidiary/Associate %of shares 
held 

Applicable Section 

NIL 
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)  
 

i. Category-wise Share Holding 
 

S. 
No. 

Category of 
Shareholders 

No .of Shares held at the beginning of the 
year (01.04.2020) 

No. of Shares held at the end of the year 
(31.03.2021) % Change 

during the 
year 

  Demat Physical Total 
% of 
Total 

Shares 
Demat Physical Total 

% of 
Total 

Shares 

A Promoter          

1. Indian          

a)  Individual/ HUF 7110157 0 7110157 69.84 7110157 0 7110157 69.84 0 

b)  Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

c)  State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

d)  Bodies Corp 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

e)  Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

f)  Any Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 Subtotal(A)(1):- 7110157 0 7110157 69.84 7110157 0 7110157 69.84 0 

2. Foreign          

a)  NRIs-Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

b)  Other-Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

c)  Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

d)  Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

e)  Any Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 Sub-total(A)(2):- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 Total Shareholding of Promoters (A)  7110157 0 7110157 69.84 7110157 0 7110157 69.84 0 

B Public Shareholding          

1. Institutions          

a)  Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

b)  Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

c)  Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

d)  State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

e)  Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

f)  Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

g)  FIIs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

h)  Foreign Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

i)  Any Other Foreign          

j)  Any Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 Sub-total(B)(1) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2. Non Institutions          

a)  Bodies Corp.          

i.  Indian 589333 0 589333 5.79 545024 0 545024 5.35 -0.44 

ii.  Overseas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

b)  Individuals          

i.  
Individual shareholders holding 
nominal share capital upto Rs. 1 lakh 

280186 0 280186 2.75 385150 0 385150 3.78 1.03 

ii.  
Individual shareholders holding 
nominal share capital in excess of Rs 
1 lakh 

1834829 77251 1912080 18.78 1755709 77251 1832960 18 -0.78 

c)   HUF 49724 0 49724 0.49 58191 0 58191 0.57 0.08 

d)   Non Resident   of India 165450 0 165450 1.63 167686 0 167686 1.65 0.02 

e)  Foreign National 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

f)  Clearing Members 6815 0 6815 0.07 14577 0 14577 0.14 0.07 

g)  Trust 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

h)  Foreign Bodies –DR 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

i)  NBFC Registered with RBI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

j)  
Investor Education and Protection 
Fund 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

k)  Others 67500 0 67500 0.66 67500 0 67500 0.66 0 

 Sub-total(B)(2) 2993837 77251 3071088 30.16 2993837 77251 3071088 30.16 0 

 
Total Public Shareholding(B)=(B)(1)+ 
(B)(2) 

3071088 30900 3071088 30.16 2993837 77251 3071088 30.16 0 

C 
Shares held by Custodian for GDRs 
&ADRs 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

D IEPF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Grand Total (A+B+C) 10103994 77251 10181245
 

100 10103994
 

77251 10181245
 

100 0
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ii. Shareholding of Promoters 
 

Sr. 
No 

Shareholder’s Name 

Shareholding at the beginning of the year 
(01.04.2020) 

Shareholding at the end of the year 
(31.03.2021) % change in 

shareholding 
during the 
year 

No. of 
Shares 
Held 

% of total 
Shares of 
the 
company 

%of Shares 
Pledged / 
encumbered 
to total shares 

No. of 
Shares 
Held 

% of total 
Shares of the 
company 

%of Shares 
Pledged / 
encumbered 
to total shares 

1. Manjit Singh 3357300 32.98 0 3357300 32.98 0 0 

2. Vijay Arora 
 
 
 

 
 

3163470 31.07 0 3163470 31.07 0 0 

3. Priyanka Arora 251785 2.47 0 251785 2.47 0 0 

4. Jaswinder Kaur 282427 2.77 0 282427 2.77 0 0 

5. Bant Singh 42425 0.42 0 42425 0.42 0 0 

6. Kanika 12750 0.13 0 12750 0.13 0 0 

 Total 7110157 69.84 0 7110157 69.84 0 0 

 
iii. Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) 

 
Sr. 
No 

Name & Type of 
Transaction 

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year (01.04.2020) 

Transactions during 
the year 

Cumulative Shareholding at the 
end of the year (31.03.2021 ) 

No. of Shares 
Held 

% of Total Shares 
of the 
Company 

Date 
Of 
Transaction 

No. of 
Shares 

No. of  Shares 
Held 

% of Total 
Shares of the 
Company 

No change 

 
iv. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and 

ADRs) as on 31
st

March, 2021:
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No. of Shares 
Held 

% of Total Shares 
of the 
Company 

No. of  Shares 
Held 

% of Total Shares 
of the 
Company 

1. Manjit Singh 3357300 32.98 3357300 32.98 

 AT THE END OF THE YEAR    3357300 32.98 

2. Vijay Arora 3163470 31.07 3163470 31.07 

 AT THE END OF THE YEAR    3163470 31.07 

3. Priyanka Arora 251785 2.47 251785 2.47 

 AT THE END OF THE YEAR    251785 2.47 

4. Jaswinder Kaur 282427 2.77 282427 2.77 

 AT THE END OF THE YEAR    282427 2.77 

5. Manjeet Singh Saini 0 0.00 0 0.00 

 AT THE END OF THE YEAR    0 0.00 

6. Michael Anthony Cruz 0 0.00 0 0.00 

 AT THE END OF THE YEAR    0 0.00 

7. Vijay Kumar Pugalia 0 0.00 0 0.00 

 AT THE END OF THE YEAR    0 0.00 

8. Paruldeep Kaur 0 0.00 0 0.00 

 AT THE END OF THE YEAR    0 0.00 

9. Dinesh Singla 28500 0.27 28500 0.27 

 AT THE END OF THE YEAR    28500 0.27 

10. Ashima Arora 0 0.00 0 0.00 

 AT THE END OF THE YEAR    0 0.00 

 
vi. INDEBTEDNESS: 

 

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment- 

Particulars 
Secured Loans excluding 

deposits 
Unsecured 

Loans 
Deposits 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year 
i) Principal Amount 
ii) Interest due but not paid 
iii) Interest accrued but not 

 
39,88,569.17 

- 
- 

0 0 

Total(i+ii+iii) 39,88,569.17 0 0 

Changes in Indebtedness during the financial year 
 -  Addition 
 -  Reduction 

 
50,00,000.00 

(24,15,903.61) 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

Net Change 25,84,096.39 0 0 

Indebtedness  at the end  of the financial year 
i) Principal Amount 
ii) Interest due but not paid  
iii) Interest accrued but not due 

 
65,72,665.56 

- 
- 

0 0 

Total (i+ii+iii) 65,72,665.56 0 0 

 
vii. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL  

 

A. Re muneration to Managing  Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager 

S. 
No. 

Particulars of Remuneration 
Manjit Singh 

MD 
Vijay Arora 

WTD 
Total Amount 

1.  

Gross salary 
(a)Salary as per provisions contained in section 
17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 
(b)Value of perquisites u/s17(2)Income-
taxAct,1961 
(c)Profitsinlieuofsalaryundersection17(3) 
Income- taxAct,1961 

 
30,00,000 

 
30,00,000 

 
60,00,000 

2.  Stock Option 0 0 0 

3.  Sweat Equity 0 0 0 

4.  
Commission 
-  as % of profit 

0 0 0 

 
(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
 

Sr. No Particulars 
For Each of the Directors & KMP  

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year (01.04.2020) 

Cumulative Shareholding at the end of 
the year (31.03.2021) 
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-  others, specify. 

5. 
Others please specify- Reimbursement of 
expenses of Board & Committee Meetings 

0 0 0 

Total(A) 30,00,000 30,00,000 60,00,000 

Ceiling as per the Act 
(being 10% of the Net Profits of the Company 
calculated as per Section 198 of the Company 
Act, 2013)  

Section II(A) of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 
according to effective Capital of the Company. 

B. Remuneration to other directors:  

S. 
No. 

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount 

1. 

Independent Directors 
Manjeet 

Singh 
Saini 

Vijay Kumar 
Pugalia 

Michael 
Anthony 

Cruz 

Paruldeep
Kaur 

85800 
• Fee for attending board

committee  meetings

• Commission

• Others, please specify

19800 15400 22000 28600 

Total(1) 19800 15400 22000 28600 85800 

 2 

  3 

Non-Executive Directors 
·Fee for attending board committee
meetings 
Commission 
Others ,please specify 
Executive Directors 
Salary 

NA 
NA 

Jaswinder Kaur 
22,50,000 

Priyanka Arora 
22,50,000 

Total(2) 22,50,000 22,50,000 45,00,000 

Total(B)=(1+2) 45,85,800 

Total Managerial Remuneration 

Overall Ceiling as per the Act (being 
11% of the Net Profits of the 
Company calculated as per Section 
198 of the Company Act, 2013).  

Section II(A) of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 according to 
effective Capital of the Company. 

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/Manager/WTD: 

S. 
No. 

Particulars of 
Remuneration 

Key Managerial Personnel 

CEO Company 
Secretary 

CFO Total 

Gross salary 
(a)Salary as per provisions contained 
in section17(1)of the Income-tax 
Act,1961 
(b)Value of perquisites u/s17(2) 

Income-taxAct,1961 

(c)Profits in lieu of salary under 
section17(3)Income-Tax Act,1961 

- 3,24,000 8,28,100 11,52,100 

Stock Option 0 0 0 0 

Sweat Equity 0 0 0 0 

Commission 
-  as % of profit 
-others, specify… 

0 0 0 0 

Others, please specify 0 0 0 0 

Total 3,24,000 8,28,100 11,52,100 
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viii. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: NIL

Type Section of the 
companies Act 

Brief 
description 

Details of Penalty/  

Punishm ent  / Compounding 

fees imposed 

Authority[RD 
/NCLT/Court ] 

Appeal made. If 
any (give 
details) 

A. Company 

Penalty 

NIL Punishment 

Compoundin
 
g 

B. Directors 

Penalty 

NIL Punishment 

Compounding 

C. Other Officers In Default 

Penalty 

NIL Punishment 

Compounding 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Touchwood Entertainment Limited  

   Sd/-           Sd/- 
   Vijay Arora        Manjit Singh 
   Whole-Time Director Chairman & Managing Director 
 DIN: 00996193         DIN: 00996149 
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Place : New Delhi
Date : 21st October, 2021
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in the managerial remuneration and justification and point out if there are any exceptional 
circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration: 

On an average, there were no increases made in the remuneration of the employee of the 
Company due to the Covid-19 pandemic. Moreover, salary reduction of Employees, Directors & 
KMP were in force during the financial year 2020-2021. 

vi.  Affirmation that remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company. 

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration policy for Directors/
Key Managerial Personnel & other employees.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Touchwood Entertainment Limited 

Sd/ -          Sd/ - 
Vijay Arora          Manjit Singh 

-WholeTime Director Chairman & Managing Director  
DIN: 00996193          DIN: 00996149  
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Place : New Delhi
Date : 21st October, 2021



PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE
ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



Y E A R S O F
T O U C H W O O D

Reg. Office: Plot no - 645, Near E.P.T Block, Sarojini Nagar, New Delhi - 110023

www.touchwood.in
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